
UNITED NATIONS 

ECONOMIC 
GENERA~ E/CN .2 SR .41 m. Apri 1950 

AND 
!NGLISH 
ORIGINAL: FRENCH 

SOCIAL COUNCIL 

CONTENTS: 

TRANSPORT AND Ca.1MUNICATIONS CG1MISSION 

Fourth Session 

·-~- SUMMARY REC<:mD OF THE F<Rl'Y-FIRST MEETING 

Held at Lake Success New York · .: ~· .. 
on Thursclay1 30 14erch 1950, at 2.~0 l?•Dl• 

... _ .. , ... , . .,_ .... ,, 

· · International, Road Trenaport 

.. 
• •l· 

cl'' 

·' 

... { ... 

..... 

(a) Res;.u_ts of the Uni.ted Nations Conference on Road and Motor 

Transport (including reoanmendations of the Conference 

contained in its Final Act relating to future ac:t:lon u~ ~he __ 

Commission, to be considered by the Econom1~ and Social 

Council at its tenth session); 

(b) 

'(c) 

Uniform System of Road. Signs and SignalB; 

Further Preble~ relating to International Road Transport 

(E/CN.2/76; E/CN,2/76/Add.l, E/CN.2/76/Add,2~ E/1609, 

E/1559/Add,l, offi~ial stu11lll8ry record of th~-347th meeting 

of the Economic and Social Council); .. 
Applicatidn of-certain non-governmental organizations for consultative 

status: 
(a) Inter-Americ~--F~del:'ation of. Automobile Clubs (FIAC).; ..... ··--·· ..... 

. (b) :rpternati.onal R~ad Federation (IRF); 

(c) International Permanent Bureau of Motor Manufacturel:'s:~<t_ffiMM) 

(E/CN.2/801 E/CN.2/80/Add.l1 E/CN.2/80/Add..2). 

Draft resolutions prepared by the Secretariat: 

(a) Passports and Frontier Formalities; 

'(o) Pollution, of Sea Wat~r by Oil; 

(o) Unification of Maritime Tonnage Measurement; 

[~); J(r~~lF,.~ ,,of Maritime Shipping affecting Latin Americo.; 
(e), :Barr1ers-"to the International Transport of Goods • 

i'~ i.. t :; • ;; ~ t'.'"-' "~" 
I ...... ':: 

: : .... 
... {• 

'· "', t ... ·~ .. : ··. ~ .. 
. .I 

··.· ······"'·'.! 

'• .. 
:( . 



EICN.2/SR.4l 
P'age 2 

Chairman: 

Members: 

Also :present: 

Mr. (KEN AftJJ. 

Mr. P.L.AZA 

Mr. HSIAO 

ABAZA Bey 

Mr. Q.()UBSAT 

Mr. SUKTHANKAR 

Da:ron~ .van EEXRiSTRA 

Mr. FOIEN 

Mr. BAIG 

S1r Osborne MANCE 

Mr. BAKJm 

Mr. JCN ANCNIC 

Mr. CHARGUERAIJI) 

Mr;.CLARXE 

~~her lends 

Chile 

China 

Egypt 

France 

India 

Netherlands 

Norway 

Pakistan 

Un:tte1. Etngdom o:f Great Britain and 
N:;oy·'·:;:or.n Ireland 

Uni t·t:::d. ste.tes o:f America 

Yugosk.v:ta 

Economic CCl!l!D.:tss:ton for Europe 

Economic COimlliss:ton for Asia and the 
Far East 

ReBresentatives of spec:t~ized ~encies:. 

Mr. EVANS 

l•fr. C.AR&'Ji.S 

Mr. MARLIN 

Miss WERRING 

International Labour Organisation (no) 

United Ne.t:tons Educat:ton/}:1 sc:te~t:tfic and 
CultmF.tl t:r-gan:tzat:ton ~UNESCO) 

Intera~'-:;:lcnal Civil ..(\v:tat:ton 
Qt-gs.··-,:.i.~O."'..,:::'.Jn (ICACJ 

Intel7l~1.1jio.-:tal J)ank for Reconstruction and 
Devs~·-O:pment ~Bh.NKJ 

Consultants .~~ non-gove~ntal or~izatia1s: 
. ' 

Ca tfk',{'H''Ll!,: 
~ . 

Mr. T<MPKINS 

Categorz B: 

Mr. wn.K!NSON 

Secretariat: 

Mr. LUKAC 

Internatianal Chamber of Commerce (ICC) 

International Union o:f Of':ficial Travel 
Ot'ganizat1ons 

Director of the Division of Transport and 
Comm1k~:tcatiana, Secretary of the 
Conmtssion · 



:mT:ImNATIONAL. ROAD 'i'MNSPCETt 

E/CN.2/SR.4l 
Page 3 

(a}- msuLTS OF THE UNlTll'J) NATIOOS CONFERENCE ON ROAD AND MOI'ffi TRANS• 

PORT (INCLUDING R0001MENDATIONS OF THE CONFERENCE CONTAINED IN 

ITS FINAL ACT RELATING TO FUTURE ACTION BY TBE CCMMISSIOIJ 1 TO BE 

. • CONSIDERED BY THE ECONO<IIC AND SOOIAL COUNC]L AT ITS TENTii S:ESSION) 

(b} UNIFCEM SYSTI!M OF ROAD SIGl\18 AND SIGNALS 

( c} FURTHER PROBL:EMS RELATING TO INTmNATIONAL RMD TRANSPORT 

(E/CN.2/76, E/CN.2fr6/ Add.l, E/CN.2/76/Add.2, E/16o9, E/1559/Add.l, 

Official summary record of the 347th meeting of the Economic and 

Council} 

1. The CRA:mMAN invited the members of the Ccmmdssion to Consider the 

a.gend.e. item on 1nternat1~al road transport. 

2. Mr. LUKAC (Secretariat) submitted the note by the Secretary-General on 

I:nternationaJ. Road Transport· (E/CN.2/76) as well as the addenda to that note 

(E/CN.2/76/Add.l, E/CN.2/76/Add.2). 

3. The first part of that note set out the results of the United Nattons 

Conference on Road and Motor Transport held in Geneva in August and September 

1949. That Conferenoe had prepared a Conventdon on Road Traffic, a Protocol 

on Roe.d Signa end Signals and a Protooo1 concerning Countries or TerritoriH 

at present occupied. on 31 December 1949, those three instruments had been 

signed by 21, 16 and 17 countries respectively. 

4 • The Conference had expressed the wish that the Eccmemic end Social 

Council should instruct the Transport end Communications Comm1ssion to consider 

the question of establishing a world.wide uniform system of road signs and 

aie;nale. It had also reo011llllended. that the Commission should continue to deal 

with further problems relating to international road transport and advise the 

Economic and Social Council on what action should be taken to deal with those 

problellls • 

5. The second part of the note dealt with the questiml of a unifo~ system 

of road signa and signals; it explained and compared the "European" or "inter .. 

national" system and the "American" system. Mr. Luka.c pointed out that the 

Protocol dravn up by the Geneva Conference was largely baaed. on the "European" 

system. The d1ff'erence between the two systems l.a:Y mainly in the use of differe-nt 

, oalblrs and the fact that '\he "European" system used eymbole, while the American 

s;ystera, ~ used wrd.s. 
I 6. The Conference 



~:·~/SR.4:l :··'._,·· 

6. The Conference had cone1detoed that the C01.11tn1ss1on couia, with the . 

~e_sis.tan~ of the necesaar:r e~~': euoceaeiUl.l.y establish a world~1de 

unifQTin ayst~ of road s1g.ns .~d.,\sisqels,":. Th~ ~ecre.ta:ey-General had thoUGht 

t4e.t .the CO!Dm.:!.oB1on was not, ,a sufficie~~1 teclnical body to deal with such a 

q~e~t1on and t!1~t it would. und.~ubte:il,y wia~ j;o set .up an ~ ~ committee of' 

experts. Accordingly the S·::.cr~tary~-ep.eral had a~mitted to the Economic end 

Social Council a. statfJment .of ,the :fi.ne.ncial impl::tcations .of the worl~. of a group of 
";, .. . . 

a ,:t;~.:qm.ber of experts not e:xoeed.ing . seven who sP,ould lJle.St ouoe in 1950 and 1 • . .' . ' '· . • ' . ~ . ' • . ! '.. 1 :, • • • • 

if necessary, once or t·..rice in 1:~51.; .'l'he .00\U:l:Cil, .had ~<;lopted the auesestion 

of the Secretarye.General and had approved the statement of the f:tz:ancial implica• 

tiona. 

7. , . i'he C~isaion ahOl.lld Jl!)W d.ec1~ t>thetnQr it ,wj~h~d to set up an 
• . • • ' ' . • : • ~ ... ,f. 

~ !!2£ comm:tttee of experts as suggested by .the Se~~~1~neral. 
·.::. 

8. The CHAJFMAN e:x:pr,eased tile v1ew that. the. ;()~1f!e:lon could tl;t!l:e pr1.do 
. ,, . . . •, . . . · .. :·. . ,. . 

1n the fact that the. Convention on ROO.d Traf:t'ic had been drafted on ita .ini• . 
' . • • ,• ·' : '', ,'' ' ; •, .:·· • ·' • . -·~ I-.~_:'~ ,..,~ti~. 

tiative. He called attention to n study prepared for :the CCll)Dliseion by. the,..\ , ., 

Bureau of Public Roads of the United S~iies .ne'Pe;~.ent 0! ·comm,erc~, entiti~a' ·. ·" 
' • • '• ·,: _I ' ' 4' 

"A Compar:f.son of the International Standard Road S.ign.,s .with the United States : 
. : . . , . . ·.·.:. ·-.,. ··-~-_-.:·.. : : ., ' --~·-"·:-~,·~···:·--~-~~'; 

Stanqard Road Signa.". , . . . . . :. . .. , .. · .. .<. · .. , 
9· . ~ The Chairman invited the members of the C~ssion to present their · 

I ~ ' ' ' '•' .-, •' <,' •: • .: '• ' ,' ''. ; • :, ,· o -~ ',,·,,··',, ~··:,~:: 

views on the auost:lon of the e.sta.blishment .of an ad. hoc c9:nnn.1 ttee of experts to 
' - . ' . ..· ,: -~ ~~ .. ,\ . ·-··. ·····; • .. :~:' 

assist the Commission in the study of a vorld~t1d,a ).Ul.it'orm .system of road ..... , .. . . '' .·. . :. . . 

a ign~:J. and e ignals •.. .if 

" .• !-' • • ~. 
'J, . 

•:- .... -, ._:··l 
• "!. ' 

10. Mrl) JCNANOVIC (Y'IlgOSla.v-ia) cons1de:red .. th~.t. t,be. creation of .a'. 
. . . . .. . " ' ' . ~ . ' . " .... ·'·1 

world-wide uniform system of }1o~ sig:le and s,ign~ls YM a question ,o~ ,the , ...•.. 
"' . ' ~. " . ' . ~ \• • .. ·, :" ' ... I ~ -~' 

utmoa.t importance. Its solution was a matter of urgtmcy .for certa1.n co~triee 
~ . • •. .c ~ • • ... '•' ~ • ',. : .• •• : • • ~ ·, ••• '• • ,: '.t~·;. -~- •. : '· 1._;· 

Which. .M.d not ae yet a weU,-d,ave.l:-9~ syste~ (lf ;t"O!t~ sil?)lS .end signals. ,S~~~-, .. . ' ... • . .. . " .' ' ~. . . : . ; .. ·~ . ; : ·--' .. 

countries had not eo far incurred heavy expenditure in that field and the~ c.~ 
. ~ .• . ; . ' .. :: k 

Vel7'·easily ~dopt any now sys,tem w;hich ·might ,be, :propq~_,ee\._1n. th~.-nee~ .future; 

on .t;.le oth~r hand, i.f: there lfere too great.~ .delay in es~:b.lishing a _wqrJ4• .. , .. · .,_ 
· •" '· ·! •· >1. ' -·· ' • - , 'r 

wide uniform eyetem, .thos-e -~C?.t;IAtr,i,es would in -th.e. ~~t~. nave. t~ ,.aq.opt .on.~ , ,-., , 
,,. ' .· • • I ., ' ' ' \. '• ' 

of'''bhe·-ayatema now in. tore~:.~~ ~gnt perh~ ~e~!~.trt;:~,,J.:n~~ "!h~:-~J;pense~. : :< 
involved 1n a chanee ofreyet~m.. ~ ,,:J ..... ·.< "'-~ ;,::·,··· , , : . .. , .... 

. . " ·· " ,. , /11 . :fn. :the in.teres~ '. .. \ ; .·' . •· . ,, .: . ' 

" ' 



E/CN .2/SR.4l 
Page5 

11. In the ihterestsm:if a.ll countru-s:1- perticulerl.y 'of. 'llnder.:.develo-ped 

countries, the Commission· was under -obligation to undertake without delay the 

task which had been assigned it 'far :the creation o£ a WQ1:"ld·W1de uniform system· 

of road a ie,na . Blid .a ignals • · 

12 • l/Jr. :S'URTHANKAR (India) agreed that a world•wide uniform system of road 

signs and signals should be set up, but wondered whether the proposed survey 

should be undertaken on a world-wide or a regional scale. The difficultieS' 

encountered in any e'ountry were usually also present in the neighbouring countries; 

it seemed, the:r.efore, that it >vould. be more advisable to becin with a review ··on 
the regional le7el. A uniform system would thus be set up in each area st;udied, 

and it would be easy to eliminate subsequently any differences there might be in 

order to achieve a common ·uniform oyatem~ 

13. India·.would prefer a system using symbols, for they were more easily-

understood than words. 

14. The CHAm!AN. pointed out that it would be difficult to undertake a etudy 

on a regional basis now, as the Geneva Conference had decided that a world..;·,.dde 

uniform system should be adopted. Moreover, it should be borne in mind thet 

uniformregional systems actually existed already. 

15. The obstacles to the setting up of a world-wide uniform system encoim· 

tered. by the Geneva Conference had not seemed insurmountable. The Confer'3I'lce 

had been of the opinion that a study undertaken by the Transport and Conmunica

tions Commission would certainly make it possible to eliminate the objections 

made till now to the establishment of a world-·.vide uniform system~ · It should 

also be borne in mind that the Economic and Social Council had entrusted the· 

Commission with the task of establishing such a system. The only question before 

the Commission, therefore, was that of setting up ~ ~ \~~ committee ~f ~xp&rts 

to assist it 1n .cl\%'rYi:le: out a WCI!'.ld. ... -wide survey. 

I 16 .·liJr ~ BAKER 



E/CN.2/SR.4~ 
Page 6 

( ' ·. "' .. '. ~ ';~ ,. 
16. Mr. B.A.KER {United. States of Ame:rlca) fully shared the Chairman's view. 

The Commission 5hould be gratified at the.results achieved by the Geneva Con

ference and set up an ad hoc committee of experts to assist the Commission in --
carrying out the task it had been assigned by the Economic and Social Counc~. 

17 • The CHAIRMAN suggested that the !!9: hoc committee of experts should be 

made up of representatives of the six principal areas of the wor~d, namely: 

North .Alnerica, South 1\merice., A:fr:lc:a, Asia and the Far East, Europe and the 

Middle East. It would be for th9 Secretary-Gei'sral to appoint the experts, 

in consultation with the Chairman of the Commission. The n~ber of experts 

should not exceed seven. 

18. Sir Osborne MANCE (United Kingdom) suggested that the principal cou-

eideration in the selection of the experts should ·be their Ltmp~tepce. ·' 

19. The CHAIRMAN pointed out that each expert would represent an area; 

it was therefore impossible far a region to be represented by an expert not 

belonging to that area. 

20 • t Sir Osborne MANCE (United Kingdom) thought an objective solution ehoU:d 

be ai~q.' and that the experts should above all be competent and impartial; the 

question of the representation of a region would seem to be of secondary impor

tance. 

21. Mr. BAKER (United States of America) considered that the experts should 

be thoroughly acquainted with the area they would represent irrespective of 

whether they came from that region or not. 

22 • Mr. GOUBSAT (.France) thought that the regional economic commissions 

could appoint the experts to represent their respective regions. 

23. The CHAIRMAN pofnted out that that was a procedural matter which should 

be left to the discretion of the Secretary-General. 

24. He read out a draft reso~ution on the establishment of an ~ £££ 
comtnittee of experts. 

/25. Sir O.eborne MANCE 



E/CN .2/SR.4l 
Page 7 

25. Sir Osborne MANCE and. Mr. StJKT!I.ANKAR (India) proposed certain 

drafting emen.cllnents. 

26. The CRAlRMAI'i noted those amendments; he would submit a fresh draft 

resolution later which the Commission would be asked to discuss. 

27. !Jl.r. GOURSAT (France) wondered whether it would not be advisable to 

include in the draft resolution a paragraph 1nv1 ting Member States to ratify 

the Convention on Road Traffic. 

28. The CBAJ:m.<f.At~ said that a provision of that nature would be included 

in the draft resolution he had, prepared on ''Further }robleme Relating to 

International Road TranspOrt". 

29. He read out the draft resolution which he said he would submit for 

the Cammiee1on's consideration at a later date. 

30. Mr. BAKER (United States of America) asked whether the Secretariat 

could include the following items in the documentation it was to prepare for. 

the fifth session of the Comnission: registration of vehicles; drivers' 

licenses; the question of driving on the left or right hand side o~ the road; 

development of a network of roads in under·developed countries. 

31. Sir Osborne MANCE (United Kingdom) thought it would also be wise to 

provide for a study of the transport of dangerous goods. He observed that 

the problem was already being dealt with in the United Kingdom in the case 

of the transport of such goods by sea. The matter was also being studied in 

connexion with air transport. It should not be studied _separately in the 

case of t.oad transport. The Secretariat should ensure that there was no lack 

of co-ordination in the carrying out of those studies. 

/APPLICATION 

,j 



'•! ·,. ' ~ . 
I ~: ' ~ • ' 

E/CN .2/SR.41 
Page 8 

. . :. '.' '"" ~ .~··. . . '' . ~ 
\ ' ' ' ~ ;,/; 

APPLICATION OF CERTAIN NON~OVERNMENTAL ORGANIZATIONS FOR CONSULTATIVE.STATUS 

(a) INTER -J'.MERICAN FEDERATION OF AUTOMOBILE CLUDS (FIAC) 

, ···,,,(b), IliJTEill:JA1';tDNAL ROAD FEDERATION., (IRF) 
• ...... • ., . ,. I, . . •' • ' '• .,. ,. ·•' 

(c) INTER~ATIONAL PERMANENT BUREAU OF MOTOR MANUFACTURERS (IPBlvJM) ' . .. ... . ·. . . ·. , ,. 

(E/CN .2/80, E/CN .2/80/Add .1, E/CN .2/80/Add .2) 

32. ·' :· · 'The:·cHAiRMlUJ in.Yitea: the· Coll'.m1ssion• to eo:hsiiier ·the a.pplics.tions 

for~eoni:ri:lltatl'li'e·statue' received rl:·om three hon-governmontal:orga.nizations.'' 

33. Mr. LUKAC (Secretariat} submitted the Secretariat note on the 

··. 

appl1ca.t'ions' cbncerned (EjoN:-2/80), 'tog(ither with two addenda~,,. (E/ClL2/80/Add .l 

and E/CN .2/80/Add ~2). · ·He· re'ealled · thB.t, 'f'ollowing the report· of the· Cl3mmi ttee 

on Non-Governmental Organizations, the Economic and Social Council ha.d· requested 

th.;;'Cuilliit:~8lun·\-u M.civis~ it oh ·the applieat1ons -sub!lljtted. The'S'ecretary- . 

General's note contained all the·neeeaeary· information on the three organizations 

in question. 
.; 

34.. The OHAIRMAN·pointed.out the.t, in·g1ving its advice in auch.cases, 

the Commission had always .bad regard. t-o-the. following three.factors: geogre.phi.cal 

distribu.tion; .the· organization's ability to express f:ree.fy t,b.e views of., its 

members and the need to..avoid any ov:erle,Jiping wi.th the aqtiv:Lties of organization 

already granted consultative stetus. 

~a) !titer -Artleriean:.Federation of· Automobile Clubs (FIAC f ~ 

35. iiJI'. Biooa{ (United States .of Amari~~) was ·o~posed to the granting of 
• ' ~ • • '" • I' 

consultative status to the FIAC in vi'ew"o:t its strictly regional character and 
' • t • • • ' • . : ,. ' • • '. ~ . • t ' .. . . • ' . . . ,, '~ . ' : ~ • . ' - -,( .... 

of 1 ta close conriexion with two organj.za tiona already granted consultative 

status ~-·the· International A\ltomobiie. Federation (FIA) and th~ Int~r~t:Lonai. 
Touring 'Alliance· (AITf: · · .. 

36. Sir. Oe~'t!c;>r~e .MANCE (United Klngdom) cons ide red that the Jl!AC could 

associate itself with the FIA and the AIT and thus enJoy the consultative 

status jointly granted to those two organizations. 

37. The CHAIRMAN agreed with Mr. Baker and Sir Osborne Mance. Be pointed 

out that the President of the FIAC was a member of the tomrndttee of the FIA. 

/38. Mr • BAKER 



E/CN .2/SR.41 
Page 9 r '/ 

, ... j ': 

~I 

38. Mr. BAKER (United States of America) added that the countries which 

were members of the FIAC were also members of the FIA or the AIT. They wore, 

therefore,· already represented by those organizations. 

39. The CHAIRMAN concluded that the Commission considered it could not 

give a favourable reply to the application of the Inter-American Feder::ttion 

of Automobile Clubs. 

The Commission decided to advise against acceptance of the applicatiop 

from the Inter-American Federation of Automobile Clubs. 

(b) International Road Federatio::l (IRF) 

40. Sir Osborne MANCE (United Kingdom) thought tbat the Commission should 

advise acceptance of the applicat.ion from the IRF.in view of the fact that the 

organization operated on a world-wide "basis and was interested in such important 
road · · 

questions as/construction and maintenance and the expansion of roads. 

in ali parts of the world. 

41. Mr. BAKER (United s·tatea of America) supported Sir Osborne Mance 'a 

proposal. 

42. The CHAIRMAN said that he found it difficult to form an opinion on 

the IRF, since he was not clear as to the interests it represented. He wondered 

whether its activities did not overlap with those of the International Chamber 

of Commerce, the International Touring Alliance and the International Road 

Transport Union, which had already been granted consultative status with the 

Economic and Social Council. 

43. Mr. BAKER (United States of America) pointed out that the IRF repre-

'aented economic interests primarily concerned with road construction and 

maintenance. It had a world -wide character and there seemed to be no reason why 

it should not be grm'l ted consu]ta ti ve a ta tua . 

44. Sir Osborne MANCB: (Ur.d.ted Kingdom) did not consider that there was any 

overlapping between the IRF, whl ch was concerned with road construction and !DB.in· 

- tenanoo, and organiza tiona suahhls thos~ concerned wt th to:Jri~~, L o.. with the 

use of roads • I 45 .. Mr. BAKER 



E/CN .2/SR.4l 
Page 10 

45. Mr. B.AKER (United S ta tea of America.) did not think there was any need 

to consid~r wheth~r the grant of consultative status to the IRF might involve 

the risk of future disputes. That question might be considered when it arose, 

if it ever should arise. The application of the IRF appeared to be in order 

and the Comm~ssion s~ould advise its acceptance. 

The Commission decided .l2..'*'~e_· f~!E e:t.,}!t1r.~&~ta.'!ce .9!..~~1L~lf~tion 
from the Inter,':lationa.l Roe.d Fedc;ration. 

--------------·------
~c) International Permanent Bur{"'~m of Motor Manufacturers (IPB}.'lM) 

46. Mr. COURSAT (France) ~ no obJection in principle to the ap:t>lication 

from the IPBMM. The Commiasi.on would, however,. run the risk of creating a 

dangerous precedent if it advised acceptance of the application. The Commission 

had hitherto dealt only with applioatiogs from touring organizations or 

organizations representing the interests ot users. If it advised favourably 

on an application from an organization of ma.nufacturers, it would have to give 

similar advice in the case of all applications submitted by similar organizations; 

such as organizations of aircraft manufacturers and ship-builders. 

47. He would repeat that he was not opposed to the application in principle 

but merely wished to warn the Coremassion against the danger of establishing a 

precedent. 

48. Sir Osborne MANCE (United Kingdom) wondered whether the question 

raised by Mr. Goursat was as important as ha would seem to think. The activities 

of the IPBMM were quite different from those of the organizations which had 

already been granted consultative statue; he therefore saw no good reason why 

its application for consultative status should not be accepted. The only 

possible objection he could see was that the organization tended to be regional 

in character, in view of the nature of its membership. 

49. The CHAIRMAN agreed with Sir Osborne Mance. Once consultative status 

had been granted to organiza tiona of road builders and roa.d users, there was no 

reason why that status should be refused to the manufacturers of vehicles. 

Furthermore, the organization in question had made a valuable contribution to 

the work of the United Nations Conference on Road and Motor Transport. Finally_, 

an organization need not be world~~ide in character to be granted consul~3tive 

status. 
/:IJ. Mr. SUKTHANXAR 



E/CN .2./SR.4l 
Page 11 

50. Mr. StJKTB'AN'Kl\R (India.} pomted out that the IPB.MM wa.s not of truly 

world-wide characteri ]h fact it only represented the professional associations 

of motor manufacturers 1n seven countries' Consequently, he could see no real 

reason for supporting the application of tha IPBMM. 

51. ABAZA Bey (Egypt) proposed that consideration of the application from 

IP.BMM should be postponed. 

The Commission decided to postpone consideration of the application from -
the IPBMM until its fifth session. 

DRAFT RESOLUTIONS PREPARED BY THE SECRETARIAT 

(a} Passports and frontier formalities. 

52. The CK~~ invited the Commlssion to consider the draft resolutions 

drawn up by the Secretariat after previous discussions, beginning with the 

draft resolution an passports and frontier formalities. 

53. Mr. W:rr..KINSON (lhternational Union of Official Travel Orcanizations) 

thanked the Cammiasion for having mentioned his or~nization in its draft 

resolution and thus recognizing the work it had carried out. 

54. The principal ann of the Internation~l Union of Official Travel 

O;rga.nizations was to encourage foreign travel so that the various nations 

might iecome better acquainted, and to remove the obstacles in the way of such 

contacts. About 40 member countries were at present represented in the 
''•-

organization by their official tourist agencies and government services dealing 

with travel. He ~ssured the Commission that his organization wished to aid the 

Transport and Communications Commission to the fullest possible extent in its 

work. 

55. . Mr. CA..'ttlmS (United Nations Educational,. Scientific and Cultural~-

Organization) drew attention to doc~ent E/CN.2/88 which shvwed the sp~cial: 

aspects of the question in which UNESCO was interested. lie asked tl~t the 

word ·~terial'' should be deleted from the English text of that document. 

56. He thanked the Commission for the opportunity given to UNESCO to 

study with it the various aspects of a question which interested both the United 

/Nations 



E/CN .2/SR ~41· ;:·· ., 
Page 12 

Nations a.rld t!NESCO tor the latter,.,~obviously wished to remove the barrier~ · 

which prevented cultural and acien:tific workers and teachers from moving freely 

from one country to another .• , . .Dt>cUlllemt E/CN .2/88 ca.ve UNESCO's point. of v:rew 

on the matter and conta:l.nF~d, from pace .5 onwards, some concrete proposals ranging 

from the issue of special passports to. the simplification of visa formalities, 

·and from .the granting of a special identity card and transport facilities to the 

question of foreicn currency. Perhaps the most serious barrier of all was that 

~:~r: ~.e·. :1mposs~b~l1ty of obta~ning sufficient foreign currency for travel purposes. 

In askinG l.fember :Jtates which were short of "hard currencies" for such a 
- . "' ... 

concession, UNESCO realized that it was asking them to make a sacrifice, but 

it was convinced that such oaorificos woro amply·o~pensated by the advantages 

resulting from freer exchanges. 

57 • Any step whtch the Commisa5.on might take :ln that connexion would be a 

.. source .or".gra'tification to UNEsco. 

58. The CHAIRMAN thought the Transport and Communications Commission should 

simplify passport and frontler forma.lities .1n general, but that it was not for 

ihe caml:nission to express .an opmiari. as to which particular groups were to be 

given priorlty in the matter. 

59. Mr. BAKER (United states of Ainerica} thoueht that that ca.uestion could 

be considered jbintly by the Secretariats of UNESCO and the Uiiited Nations • 

. :-A mo1•e ·thoroueh study was needed than that whlch: the Ccmm.iselon could. undertake 

during' the p:resent session. The 3ecretar1at could be asked to report'at: the 

next session of ;the Camirt!ss1.on an the result of its consultations with the 

Secretariat of UNESCO, and the Comm:tss:ion could then take a decision. 
; ' 

60. Mr. E'Vi-'\.NS (:mternational Labour Organisation) said that the Advisory 

Corresponde~~e Cr.»:Jll1Ht9~ on Recreation of the Ito had also dealt with measures 
-·- ---- ... ---; -. ~ ' . ..., . - . • .• . . ' ! - -·- . • . - - -- ' ·- : l ~ _. . ' ' . 

designed· 'to &...:;-I01Ai"'\~)\3' PUll: ·ar touring, more especially on an in~..m.ationul 

basis,· as indicated in the document on travel questions (E/CN .2/701 pag·e· 5). 

/61. Sir Osborne MANCE 



E/CN.2/SR.41 
llaGL 13 

61. Sir Oahorne MANCE (United K:U1~om) asked 1vhether it would not suffice, 

aadsatisfy both the ILO and urtEsco, if States complied with the recommendations 

of the Meeting of Experts on Passports and Frontier Fotmalities held in Geneva in 

1947, which was mentioned in sub-paragraph (a) of paragraph (2) of the operative 

part or the draft resolution. 

62. The CHA:IBMAN agreed that that was indeed the case, but pointed out that 

it was dlfficult for the .secretariat to take into account the interests of the 

various categories of travellers who mic;ht wish to obtain special facilities. 

63. Mr. EVANS (International te.b~ur Organis~ t;l.;nJexplained that besides 

frontier formalities and pasaports,.eoneessions such as reduced rates which might 

be granted to certain categories of travellers had also to be considered. The 

Commission of the teague of Nation~.which had dealt with communications and tran

sit had examined the question ~~d. that in practice eevoral governnonts, or rather 

their railways, hD.d granted reduced rates and other important concessions. 
64. The CHAIRMAN considered that the question of special rates was 

another :matter, which did not concern tM Commission. 

65. Sir Osborne MANCE (United Kincdam) suGcested that the Secretariat 

should ask, in connexian with ita inquiry addressed to Gove1~ents concerning the 

action taken with respect to the recommendations of th~ MeetinG of Experts on 

Passports and Frontier Formalities1 whllt treatment those Governments would: 

accord to special groups. In tbA t way, the COlllllliss ion would know wm t had been 

and what rema :!ned to be done • 

66. Mr. STJ.KTHA.NKAR (India) agreed with the Chairnla.n that the Commission 

should consider only the general question of passports an.d frontier formalities 

and should not consider particular groups. He suppor~ed the proposal made by 

Mr. Baker tba. t the Secretariat should be asked to submit a study and to make 

:recommendations, Action might be taken with greater advantage on the national 

plane than on the international plane as md been the case with the recommenda

tions made by the International Chamber of Commerce. 
;'( 

· j67. The CHAIRMAN 



E/CN.2/SP..4l 
Page 14 

67 ~ The dB:A~ p:toopoeed thti 1 \he 4Ustion might be solved by adding a 

·third sub-paragraph 'to pe.r&:gta'ph (2) ot ~h6 operative p\rt of the draft ree~iu-
, , , 1: , . or 

t.fon.;: which would read: "(c) Whether special f'aoilities have been gra.nted/whe.ther 

Govermnenta are prepared to grant special rac1li ties to particular groups 'of 

travellers". 

; 68. Y.e. CARNES (United Nations Eduea.t1emal, Scientific and Cu;lture.l 

Organization) said that·, during their discussions~ the organs ot UNESCO had 

always taken care to ShOW Which. questions f'ell Within the competence of the.· 

Transport and Comnnm1oat1ons Commission, such as, f'or example, the subJects dealt 

with in· document E/CN. 2/88• He. would ·therefore· be glad· if' the coinm1ssion were 

to e}:lov that 1 t had' considered those .. ctue·at1oila·. · 
.. ' 

69. ·. Mr.· 'l'QMPKINS (Internatione.l'Chamber of Commerce) pointed out that 

business men· also ··constituted an '\im.po~tant·'Srou.:P as •far as ti-a.vel facilities were 

concerned. • · · ,:.; ... ; .' ~ 

70. The CHAIR!wlAN replied to the representative of UNESCO that 1 t would be 

difficult to ~nt!on the groups 1n which 1~iESCO w~s interested ~thout also 

mentioning those in which the ILO, ICC and perhaps other organizations wer,e . . 

interested, He :proposed that· the Commission should take note of docUm.ent 

E/CN.2/88, submitted by UNESCO, in the second p!~gr:'aph of the draft re~olution, 
mentioning it ·after· the report aubmitte<f by the International Union' of Official 

T:ravel Organizations~· · 

71. Mr. JOVANOVIC (Yusosl.avia.} explained that he had refrained from taking 

:part iri the dfscuas1on: and would. aba'k.in from voting Since. his .Government con

sidered that the question of :passports"a~d ~ontier formalities came ~xolusiv~ly 
within the domestic Jurisdiction of States. 

The draft res~lution c~ ;esaports and. frontier formalities, as ~nde<\ 

Pollution of ·Sea Water "by cHi 
··'· 

72. A:BAZA;Bey (ESYPt) suggested that if the Commission deemed it necessary 

to Nta.~n the reference to pollution by atam.ic w.ste, the word "possible" should 

be inserted before the words ''pollution of sea water" 1n sub-paragraph (e) of 
l~h 1 of the draft r&eolution. h3. Mr. BAKER 



E/CN.2/~R_.4l 
Page 15' · 

73.: · Mr. 'BAKER ·(United States ot.~rica) po1nte\i ou:t .that it. was not yet 
' ! . . • ~ 

kno'WI"l in wl1at form atpmic energy ~~ght .be used to propel ships,_ but .1 t w.e 
' ' . ' . . ~. 

certain that such a development might result 1n the p_ollution of sea -water, Sub• 

'pal'fJ.81"ll.ph (e) should therefore be retained in the text of the ~solution. 

~ ... ,_ ~-' ., .•. ... ~". 

74. Th~ c:r:I\.IPJ.W.N also thought it would be better to retain the existing 

text of the sub~l?P-l.'3.g_"t''.:ph. 

It 'WS-8 so doeided.. 
~------

75. M":', :2A;0:R (United States of Amer1a&) pcinted out that the meaning 

of eub .. :pe.!'O.e.;:<:?.:ph (:') of paragraph 1 ~s n.ot c:lea.r. 

76. The CHAIRMAN agreed with Mr. !aker; In ltie o:p1riion, the eub-pa.ragre.:ph: 

referred to the :pr€·fer·euce -wh:tch Governments might wish to accord to any particu

laJ; ,a~p~7t o:f the ~:cob2.am.. NeYertheleae, it should be understood that it w.s 

the consequences of :pollution, together with the 'methQda fer eUminating it, 

Which. should be considered, and not :pollution· ;itself~ 

The. Coom-daelon e.do2~d two forllial a~~Ml.:J.e!.h't.Q_ ·llropoaed by Mr. BAKER 

{United States .£t.~.r.1ca) and Mr. SUKTtt~l~R .. (Ir~diaf' respec~velj. 
• • ' ·. . •. i-:: -~~ " .. , . . • ·.. . . . . ... . . . 

.. , . The draft resoJn+,ion, as am.:ndec\, we.s e.d.opteO) lrllani:'llbus;I): • 
. , ·• ... ~· .:.: : ., r· .:·. · .. .,; .. '·: ·. 

(o) Un1f1ca~..?! maritime to~e;e mea.suremen,! 

TI. Mr. JOVANOVIC (Yugoslavia) re~rk~d ·that· there w.a n.o logical connexior. 

l>etween the fourth and fifth :paragraphs of the draft reaolution; indeed, ·they 

were somewhat contradictory. 
' . 

; . ~' - ' 
78. The CHAIRMAN ~posed that:.:.the text of the fourth :paragraph should }):8 

' " • . • . ~ ; : .• ~ .::' I :t,. 
changed to read e.a follows: ···--·-- · 

11::i0ting more-over that the :repiiea of -the ·Govermlwmts indicate 

that the majority· of countries are· n-ot prepared at this stage to con ... 

templa.te the unification of maritime ton.nage nu;taeurement on the basis 

of the Oslo Rule a of 1947 •••• " 

/79. Sir Oabo~ MANCE 



E/CN .2/.SR. 41 
Page lb 

79. Sir Osborne MANCE (United Kingdom). wondered whether that was really true 

of the majority of countries. He proposed that the text should read simply 

"a certain n1llllber of countries It. 

!~ Er.s-:.22.~-~-~~d~ted. 

Tb~:....::~·:L~ t:?s"'·"~ict~ to the text of the fourth ;paragraph proposed by t.h2, 

Chai:rm.:'~' ·"' . l . ; ,;q,?t•3l.. 
---~·-··--

80. Mr. BAKER (United states of America) proposed that the last aub-para.grap 

should be che.nged to read " ••• to leave the question of inter-governmental action 

to IMCO, W~ltln lt. co~;.Ge in,t.o being, o.nd urges individual Governments to continue 

their :;;i;,;d.y c.r: ·:.11Y. prob~.Bm". 

81. Mr. CO~J:RSAT (France) remarked that the matter w.s not one with which 

Governments couli deal separately. 

82. Mr. BA..T\ER (United States of America) explained. that one of the aspects 

to be considered -was tlat of the possible consequences, in each country, of a 

change-over from one system of torunge measurement to another. A study of that 

nature required time and money; Governments should therefore be reminded of the 

d~d'l'la'b1.1it.y of eon.till'lling (jonsiderQ.tion of the problema' involved· in· order tb be 

p~epareu f~r tr~ eventual conference to consider the adoption of a truly uniform 

system. 

83. The CHAIRMAN proposed that the original text of the sub-paragraph should 

be retained. 

It w.as eo decided. 

~h~ c.r:;:ft resolution, as amended, was adopted umnimously. 

(d) Pro~.J~~~ of mri time shipping affecting Latin America 

~.;::!ift resolution \olaS adopted unanimously with f)ome draftins changes. 

(e) ~~:rs to international transport of goods (draft resolution A) 

84. Mr. BAKER (United States of .America) proposed the deletion of the words 

appearing in brackets in the second :paragraph. 

85. Sir Osborne MANCE (United Kingdom) thought it should be ireeogn12e! that. 
-• 

that question lad already been studied to some extent. He therefore proposed 

that the words "to proceed to" in the fourth line of the second paragre.ph should 

be replaced by the words "to continue". j86. Mr. GOURSAT 



E/CN.2/SR.4l 
Page 17 

86. Mr. GOURSAT (France) aia. not agr-ee with the United Stt\.1:ee:. representative. 

As regards the words appearing in brackets, he felt that the resolution would 

cover a greater number of States if it addressed. itself to those which were parties 

to the Gen~l Agreement on Tariffs and Trades ·or to 1rhose which had signed the 

Havana Charter. Those states were not all Members of the United Nations. 

87. Sir Osborne MANCE (United Kingdom) proposed the insertion of a new 

paragraph betr..,een the two existing paragraphs, ree.dins as follows: 

"Noting further that direct action such as the convening of a 

conference to deal with the matter cannot be initiated pending the 

coming into force of the ITO. 11 

88. Mr. BAKER (United States of America) proposed that 1 t should merely be 

mentioned in the draft resolution that 1 t \rias undesirable to take fUrther action 

on the international plane before the ITO came into being ani\ that a more detailed 

expl.a.nation of the situation might be inserted in the Comnission's report. 

89. The CHAIRMAN expressed his approval of Mr. Baker' a ti~gestion; he did 

not feel, however 1 that the Co:amission should immediately take a final decision 

on the draft resolution. 

It was so decided. 

The meet:J.ng rose at 5.40 p.m. 

11/14. a.m. 




